
AGENDA: September 24, 2019 
All Documents for public review on file with the District’s secretary located at 806 Palm Canyon Drive, Borrego Springs CA 92004 
Any public record provided to a majority of the Board of Directors less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, regarding any item on the open session portion of 
this agenda, is available for public inspection during normal business hours at the Office of the Board Secretary, located at 806 Palm Canyon Drive, Borrego 
Springs CA 92004. 
 
The Borrego Springs Water District complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.  Persons with special needs should call Geoff Poole – Board Secretary at 
(760) 767 – 5806 at least 48 hours in advance of the start of this meeting, in order to enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility. 
 
If you challenge any action of the Board of Directors in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing, 
or in written correspondence delivered to the Board of Directors (c/o the Board Secretary) at, or prior to, the public hearing. 

Agenda Page 1 

 

 
Borrego Water District Board of Directors 

Regular Meeting   
September 24, 2019 @ 9:00 a.m. 

806 Palm Canyon Drive 
Borrego Springs, CA  92004 

 
I. OPENING PROCEDURES 

A. Call to Order: 
B. Pledge of Allegiance 
C. Roll Call 
D. Approval of Agenda 
E. Approval of Minutes 

1. July 3, 2019 Special Board Meeting 
2. July 9, 2019 Special Board Meeting 
3. July 23, 2019 Special Board Meeting  

F. Comments from the Public & Requests for Future Agenda Items (may be limited to 3 min) 
G. Comments from Directors 
H. Correspondence Received from the Public: None 

 
II. ITEMS FOR BOARD CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 

A. Borrego Water District 
1. Ocotillo Wells Solar Contract – G Poole  
2. Borrego Springs Options to SDGE: UPDATE– G Poole  

 
B. Borrego Spring Sub Basin 

1. Groundwater Sustainability Plan UPDATE – G Poole 
2. Stipulated Judgement Negotiations UPDATE – G Poole 
 

C. Status Update and Verbal Discussion of: 
1. Critical Overdraft Plan Development  
2. Water Quality Monitoring Plan & Ground Water Monitoring Program  

 
III. STANDING AND AD-HOC BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS –  

A. STANDING: 
1. Operations and Infrastructure – Delahay/Duncan 

B. AD-HOC: 
1. GSP Preparation – Brecht/Duncan  
2. Risk – TBD 

a. Appoint members to Committee – K Dice 



AGENDA: September 24, 2019 
All Documents for public review on file with the District’s secretary located at 806 Palm Canyon Drive, Borrego Springs CA 92004 
Any public record provided to a majority of the Board of Directors less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, regarding any item on the open session portion of 
this agenda, is available for public inspection during normal business hours at the Office of the Board Secretary, located at 806 Palm Canyon Drive, Borrego 
Springs CA 92004. 
 
The Borrego Springs Water District complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act.  Persons with special needs should call Geoff Poole – Board Secretary at 
(760) 767 – 5806 at least 48 hours in advance of the start of this meeting, in order to enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility. 
 
If you challenge any action of the Board of Directors in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing, 
or in written correspondence delivered to the Board of Directors (c/o the Board Secretary) at, or prior to, the public hearing. 

Agenda Page 2 

3. Grant Funding – Dice/Johnson 
4. Association of California Water Agencies/Joint Powers Authority –TBD 

a. Appoint members to Committee – K Dice 
5. Organizational Staffing/Prop 218 Preparation: Dice/TBD 

a. Appoint members to Committee – K Dice 
6. Air Quality Monitoring – K Dice 

 
IV. STAFF REPORT 

A. Financial Reports:  
  May 2019 
  June 2019 
  July 2019 
  August 2019 

B. Water and Wastewater Operations Report: 
  May 2019 
  June 2019 
  July 2019 
  August 2019 

C. Water Production/Use Records:  
  May 2019 
  June 2019 
  July 2019 
  August 2019 

 
V. CLOSED SESSION: 

A. Conference with Legal Counsel - Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (3) of 
subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9: (Three (3) potential cases) 

B. GM Performance Review – Conference for Public Employee Performance Evaluation - Title: General 
Manager Employee Performance Review- pursuant to subdivision (d) (4) of Government Code Section 
(Government Code § 54957)  
 

VI. CLOSING PROCEDURE 

A. Suggested Items for Next/Future Meeting Agenda 
B. The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for Tuesday, October 8th @ 

9:00 
 
 
 
 
 



Minutes:  July 3, 2019 1 

Borrego Water District Board of Directors 
MINUTES 

Special Board Meeting 
July 3, 2019 @ 9:00 a.m. 
806 Palm Canyon Drive 

Borrego Springs, CA 92004 
 

I. OPENING PROCEDURES 
 A. Call to Order:  Vice-President Brecht called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. 
 B. Pledge of Allegiance:  Those present stood for the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 C.  Roll Call:   Directors: Present:   President Dice (via teleconference),  
         Vice-President Brecht, Secretary/  
         Treasurer Duncan, Delahay 
     Staff:  Geoff Poole, General Manager 
       Greg Holloway, Operations Manager 
       Steve Anderson, Best Best & Krieger 
     Public:  Diane Johnson  

 
 D. Approval of Agenda:  MSC: Approving the Agenda as written. 
 E. Approval of Minutes:  None 
 F.  Comments from the Public and Requests for Future Agenda Items:  None 
 G. Comments from Directors: None 
 H. Correspondence Received from the Public:  None 
   
II. ITEMS FOR BOARD CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION  
 A. Borrego Water District:   
  1. Club Circle Area Sewerline Cleaning and Inspection by Downstream.  Greg 
Holloway noted that the duration of the work was estimated at ten days; he believed it would be 
longer.   Steve Anderson recommended approving the contract with a cap of double the amount 
bid.  MSC: Delahay/Duncan approving the proposal from Downstream not to exceed $153,440, 
with excess charges to come back to the Board. 
  2. Resignation of Director Harry Ehrlich and Review of Process for Replacement. 
Geoff Poole reported that Director Ehrlich had resigned from the Board effective June 25, 2019.  
A proposed outline contemplated completion of the replacement recruitment process in July.  
Director Brecht requested that the ultimate decision be made by the Board.  It was agreed that a 
committee was not necessary, and that a newspaper ad would be submitted.   
 B. GSA: Borrego Springs Sub Basin: 
  1. BWD GSP Draft Public Comments – Posted on County Site.  No further 
discussion. 
 
III. STANDING AND AD-HOC BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS:  Deferred until July 
9. 
 

IV. STAFF REPORTS:  Deferred until July 9. 
 



Minutes:  July 3, 2019 2 

V. CLOSED SESSION: 
 A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to 
paragraph (3) of subdivision (d) of Government Code Section 54956.9 (Two (2) potential cases):   
The Board adjourned to closed session at 9:26 a.m., and the open session reconvened at 11:45 
a.m.  There was no reportable action. 
 
VI. CLOSING PROCEDURE 
 A. Suggested Items for Next/Future Agenda:  Items for the next Agenda were not 
discussed. 
 B. The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for Tuesday, July 9th  
@ 9:00.  There being no further business, the Board adjourned at 11:45 a.m.  



Minutes:  July 9, 2019 1 

Borrego Water District Board of Directors 
MINUTES 

Special Meeting Workshop  
July 9, 2019 @ 9:00 a.m. 
806 Palm Canyon Drive 

Borrego Springs, CA 92004 
 

I. OPENING PROCEDURES 
 A. Call to Order:  President Dice called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. 
 B. Pledge of Allegiance:  Those present stood for the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 C.  Roll Call:   Directors: Present:   President Dice, Vice-President  
         Brecht, Secretary/Treasurer Duncan,  
         Delahay 
     Staff:  Geoff Poole, General Manager 
       Steve Anderson, Best Best & Krieger 
       Wendy Quinn, Recording Secretary 

  Public:  Lee Scharf  Cathy Milkey, Rams Hill 
    Diane Johnson  Harry Turner, Rams Hill 
    Mike Himmerich Rebecca Falk 
    Jana Edwards  Roy Melling 
    Gina Moran, State Meagan Wylie, Cal State 
     Parks   Sacramento 
    Jim Bennett, County Leanne Crow, County of 
     of San Diego  San Diego 
    Jack McGrory 

 D. Approval of Agenda:  MSC: Brecht/Delahay approving the Agenda as written. 
 E.  Comments from the Public and Requests for Future Agenda Items:  Rebecca Falk 
read an e-mail she had sent to Geoff Poole and Board members.  She quoted a DWR 
representative as saying that if BWD enters into a stipulated adjudication, it will be ineligible for 
State funding for GSP implementation.  State staff also indicated that adjudicated basins are not 
exempt from CEQA relative to Projects and Management Actions. 
 F. Comments from Directors: President Dice reported that she had read all the 
comment letters regarding the draft GSP.  She thanked all who weighed in. 
 G. Correspondence Received from the Public:  None 
 H. Board Strategy for FY 2020:  Director Brecht explained that the strategy 
developed as part of the budget package should be before the Board on a regular basis. 
  
II. ITEMS FOR BOARD CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION  
 A. Borrego Water District:   
  1. Discussion of Potential Negotiated Terms of a Court Stipulated Resolution of 
Borrego Springs Subbasin Critical Overdraft.  Mr. Poole explained that after six months of 
detailed negotiations among the pumpers, staff is ready to share the general terms and conditions 
of a proposed stipulated adjudication.  The negotiations had been confidential until now, but a 
two or three month public review process now begins before the document is ready for 
consideration of approval.  Steve Anderson added that the confidential negotiations were 
permissible under the Brown Act because of the possibility of litigation.   
  Mr. Anderson narrated a slide presentation summarizing the terms of a potential 
negotiated solution regarding water rights and management of the Borrego Springs Subbasin.  



Minutes:  July 9, 2019 2 

The stipulation contemplates an accelerated rampdown, i.e. a 50 percent decrease in pumping 
over the first ten years, beginning October 1, 2020, reaching 12,250 acre-feet per year by 2030.  
Mr. Poole brought up the issue raised by Ms. Falk regarding CEQA.  Mr. Anderson explained 
that the stipulation provides for governance by a five-member watermaster board formed by a 
Superior Court judge.  The courts are not subject to CEQA, and therefore the watermaster is not.   
  The stipulated judgment provides for all non-de minimis wells to be metered by 
March 31, 2020.  Staff is investigating remote meter reading.  Ms. Falk asked whether this would 
replace the metering program set forth in the draft GSP.  Mr. Anderson replied that the 
stipulation provides for installation by the manufacturer or a certified meter installer and an 
annual certification.  Director Duncan added that it was consistent with the GSP.  Mr. Anderson 
explained that the State Park, as an asset to the community, would receive a fixed pumping 
allocation to cover current and future uses, with no rampdown.  BWD will receive an allocation 
of 2,581 acre-feet per year.  The GSP will be converted to a Physical Solution consistent with the 
stipulation, to be attached and incorporated into the stipulation.   
  Mr. Anderson went on to elaborate on the proposed governance by a watermaster 
board with Superior Court oversight.  They will hold open meetings in accordance with the 
Brown Act.  The five board members would include representatives of BWD, the community, 
the County, agriculture, and recreation.  They will hire their own independent staff, and they will 
be funded by per-acre-feet assessments.  The judge will enforce payment.  Ms. Falk pointed out 
that agriculture and recreation don’t represent many people, and some may eventually leave the 
valley.  She suggested a seven-member board, perhaps including the State Park or a second 
BWD or community representative.  Mr. Anderson explained that the composition of the board 
could be changed over time with approval of the judge.  Mr. Poole agreed to take suggestions 
into consideration and bring them to the attention of the negotiators.  Another question was 
raised, whether a landowner’s participation in the lawsuit creating the stipulated adjudication 
would create a lien on their property and make it difficult to sell.  Mr. Anderson did not believe it 
would, but agreed to double check on it.   
  The proposed Environmental Working Group would be a committee of scientific 
experts who would advise the watermaster on Groundwater Dependent Ecosystems and other 
matters.  They would work with the State Park and others on possible strategies to address GDEs.  
The Technical Advisory Committee would be comprised of engineers and hydrogeologists who 
would advise the watermaster on technical issues.  Any party to the stipulation may appoint 
representatives to the TAC, but would have to bear the cost.  The watermaster would make 
ultimate technical decisions, subject to Court oversight.  Diane Johnson suggested an economist 
on the TAC, and Mr. Anderson agreed to look into it.   
  Mr. Anderson explained that judgment implementation costs would be borne by 
all pumpers based on their actual pumping.  The watermaster would arrange for collection of 
assessments, and the Court would enforce collection if necessary.  Initially, the parties would 
contribute based on their Baseline Pumping Allocations until the assessments are collected.   
  The anti-speculation provisions in the judgment would constrain speculation in 
water and water rights by outside interests through land ownership requirements and other 
provisions.  Ms. Falk asked whether water rights acquired through the water trading program but 
not used would expire.  She further suggested a cap on how much a particular entity could own.  
Mr. Anderson explained that the judgment proposes that the only way water rights can be vested 
is by the Court.  The watermaster will track water rights.  A water transfer program is 
contemplated as a Project and Management Action.  Fallowing standards will be included.  Jim 
Bennett asked would would happen to the existing water credits, and Mr. Anderson replied that 
they would be included in the BPAs. 



Minutes:  July 9, 2019 3 

  Mr. Anderson requested an indication from the Board that the negotiating team 
was headed in the right direction.  Approval will be requested in September or October.  MSC: 
Brecht/Delahay giving the attorney and negotiating team the go-ahead to continue to work on 
the stipulated judgment process.   
  
 B. STATUS UPDATE AND DISCUSSION OF: 
   1. Critical Overdraft Plan Development.   
   2. FY CIP Bond Spend Progress.   
   3. Proposition 218 Study Progress 
   4. Water Quality Monitoring Plan Progress 
   5. Other Current Projects Progress 
   6. Review of District To Dos Table 
   7. Urgent Issues Not Covered By Above Items 
   Mr. Poole reported that the subjects in these items would be standard in future 
workshop Agendas, and updates would be presented. 
 
III. CLOSED SESSION 
 A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to 
paragraph (3) of subdivision (d) of Government Code Section 54956.9 (Two (2) potential cases): 
The Board adjourned to closed session at 10:40 a.m., and the open session reconvened at 11:45 
a.m.  There was no reportable action.   
 
IV. CLOSING PROCEDURE 
 A. Suggested Items for Next/Future Agenda:  Items for the next Agenda were discussed 
earlier in the meeting. 
 B. The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for Tuesday, July 
23rd @ 9:00.  There being no further business, the Board adjourned at 11:45 a.m.   



Minutes:  July 23, 2019 1 

Borrego Water District Board of Directors 
MINUTES 

Regular Meeting  
July 23, 2019 @ 9:00 a.m. 
806 Palm Canyon Drive 

Borrego Springs, CA 92004 
 

I. OPENING PROCEDURES 
 A. Call to Order:  President Dice called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. 
 B. Pledge of Allegiance:  Those present stood for the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 C.  Roll Call:   Directors: Present:   President Dice, Vice President  
         Brecht, Secretary/Treasurer   
         Duncan, Delahay 
     Staff:  Geoff Poole, General Manager 
       Wendy Quinn, Recording Secretary 

  Public:  Jim Engelke  Andrea Roess, Taussig  
    Diane Johnson  Michael Sadler, Borrego Sun 

    Suzanne Lawrence Brian Brady 
 D. Approval of Agenda:  MSC: Brecht/Delahay approving the Agenda as written. 
 E.  Approval of Minutes: 

 1. June 11, 2019 Special Meeting 
  MSC: Brecht Delahay approving the Minutes of the Special Meeting of June 11, 
2019 as corrected (change Item II.B, second paragraph, to read in part, “. . . a letter from a 
Spanish speaking constituent . . .”). 
 F.  Comments from the Public and Requests for Future Agenda Items:  Michael 
Sadler announced that Wendy Quinn’s article on the proposed stipulated judgment made the 
front page of the Borrego Sun. 

   Suzanne Lawrence suggested inviting someone involved in developing the 
stipulated judgment be invited to speak to the Board. 
   Diane Johnson suggested a future Agenda item, how public input and comments 
on the stipulated judgment will be handled and when; also a proposal to get someone from the 
community to speak to the judge when he/she is considering the stipulation.  Geoff Poole agreed 
to investigate.  Ms. Lawrence reported that the Stewardship Council is concerned that visitors are 
vested in Borrego Springs as a destination and in the State Park, and have a different voice that 
could also speak to the judge.  Director Duncan pointed out that the Stipulation will go to DWR 
for approval, and there will be a public comment period.  President Dice agreed that a vehicle for 
public comment is needed, and agreed to put it on a future Agenda. 
 G. Comments from Directors:  None 
 H. Correspondence Received from the Public: Mr. Poole invited the Board’s 
attention to Ray Shindler’s letter in support of the stipulation, included in the Board package. 
  
II. ITEMS FOR BOARD CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION  
 A. Borrego Water District: 
  1. Selection and Seating of Diane Johnson for Replacement of Director Ehrlich.  
President Dice announced that there was one applicant for the Board seat vacated by Director 
Ehrlich, Diane Johnson.  President Dice welcomed Ms. Johnson to the Board and cited her 
knowledge and community activities.  She will take office on July 26 so that she can participate 
as a member of the Advisory Committee at its July 25 meeting.  MSC: Delahay/Brecht adopting 
Resolution No. 2019-07-08, Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Borrego Water District 
Accepting the Resignation of Harry Ehrlich and appointing Director-elect Diane Johnson for 
the Remaining Term.  Mr. Poole swore her in.     



Minutes:  July 23, 2019 2 

   
  2. Property Tax Assessment and Stand By Charges.  Mr. Poole invited the 
Board’s attention to the proposed Resolutions in the Board package.  Andrea Roess offered to 
answer questions.  She explained that there are four standby charges, similar to the previous ones 
with a couple of parcel changes; two Community Facilities District charges paying debt service 
on bonds, with no significant changes; and a restatement and adoption of the District’s 
investment policy.  MSC: Brecht/Delahay adopting the following Resolutions: 
  Resolution No. 2019-07-01, Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Borrego 
Water District Restating and Adopting a Statement of Investment Policy; 
  Resolution No. 2019-07-02, Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Borrego 
Water District, San Diego County, California, Levying Standby Charges and/or Acreage 
Assessments to Defray the Cost of Operations and Maintenance of the District and Requesting 
the Levy and Collection of said Standby Charges and/or Acreage Assessments on Land Within 
the District for the Fiscal Year 2019-2020; 
  Resolution No. 2019-07-03, Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Borrego 
Water District, San Diego County, California, Levying Standby Charges and/or Acreage 
Assessments to Defray the Costs of Operations and Maintenance of the District, and to Pay 
Costs of Operations and Maintenance for Improvement District No. 1 and Requesting the 
Levy and Collection of said Standby Charges and/or Acreage Assessments on Certain Land in 
Improvement District No. 1 for the Fiscal Year 2019-2020; 
  Resolution No. 2019-07-04, Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Borrego 
Water District, San Diego County, California, Levying Charges and/or Acreage Assessments 
to Defray the Cost of Providing Pest Control Services by the District and Requesting Levy and 
Collection of said Charges and/or Acreage Assessments for the Fiscal Year 2019-2020; 
  Resolution No. 2019-07-05, Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Borrego 
Water District, San Diego County, California, Levying Standby Charges and/or Acreage 
Assessments to Defray the Cost of Operating and Maintaining the Water Facilities Within 
Improvement District No. 3 of the District and Requesting the Levy and Collection of said 
Standby Charges and/or Acreage Assessments for the Fiscal Year 2019-2020; 
  Resolution No. 2019-07-06, Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Borrego 
Water District Acting as the Legislative Body of Community Facilities District No. 2017-1 of 
the Borrego Water District Authorizing the Levy of Special Taxes Within Community 
Facilities District No. 2017-1 for the Fiscal Year 2019-2020; and 
  Resolution No. 2019-07-07, Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Borrego 
Water District Acting as the Legislative Body of Community Facilities District No. 2007-1 of 
the Borrego Water District Authorizing the Levy of Special Taxes Within Community 
Facilities District No. 2000-1 for the Fiscal Year 2019-2020. 
 B. Status Update and Verbal Discussion of:   
  1. Critical Overdraft Plan Development.  Director Brecht presented a chart 
depicting the “20-Year Risk Adjusted Capital Needs Impacts of Path Chosen.”  It included 
District costs and expenses in millions of dollars, and a comparison of GSA vs. stipulation vs. 
adversarial adjudication path.  He noted there is a 20 percent variation in the cost estimates, plus 
or minus, over the 20-year implementation period.  The categories were CIP costs, GSP pumping 
fee expense, legal expense, water rights costs and technical expense, followed by a 20-year total 
for each of the three paths.  Director Brecht pointed out that the cost estimates were for District 
expenses only.  Overall, the stipulation would be the cheapest at $31.4 million.  Grants will be 
important.  Although the District or watermaster may not be eligible for some grants with a 
stipulation, the available grant money reserved for GSPs is relatively small.  Director Brecht saw 
no reason not to use the stipulation.  SGMA compliance would still be required. 
 Director Delahay pointed out that adversarial adjudication costs more and takes longer.  
Michael Sadler inquired about the GSP pumping fee expense, and Director Brecht explained that 



Minutes:  July 23, 2019 3 

it was a fee to pay for GSP implementation. A stipulation would reduce the District’s costs due 
to timing and what is actually being done to implement the GSP.  Suzanne Lawrence expressed 
concern regarding the potential loss of GSP-related grant funds, which tend to fund “soft costs” 
to maintain equity, transparency and local control.  Director Duncan assured her that the 
negotiating team knows where the community is coming from and expressed their concerns.  Ms. 
Lawrence hoped that the ultimate governance would reflect the principles of SGMA. 
  2. BWD Bond Financed Projects.  Director Brecht asked that at every 
workshop, an update and charts showing how much money has been spent to date on bond 
financed projects be included.  Mr. Poole assured him that Ms. Pitman would provide the figures.  
He went on to report on replacement Well #1.  The driller has prepped and cleaned the well, and 
will start the pump test tomorrow.  After that, Southwest Drilling will be done and Hidden 
Valley Pump will begin work and waiting for SDG&E.   
  A and R Construction has satisfied all requirements to begin Phase 1 of the 
pipeline projects in Double O, Frying Pan, Weather Vane and T Anchor.  Lines will be moved 
from the alley to the street.  Mr. Poole and Mr. Sadler will prepare a reminder for the Borrego 

Sun that the construction is coming up.   
  The siting for replacement Well #2 is in work.  Potentially better alternatives to 
the school site have been identified.  The Phase 2 pipeline projects in De Anza will all be in the 
streets.  Staff is deciding whether to do the fire hydrant replacement in house, contract it out, or 
some of each.  Mr. Poole will bring back a recommendation to the Board in September, along 
with one on a site for replacement Well #2. 
  3. Proposition 218 Study Progress.  Mr. Poole reported that Ms. Pitman was 
assembling a data request list for Raftelis.  Director Brecht wanted to make sure we were on 
schedule, and Mr. Poole agreed to check with Ms. Pitman and Raftelis.  Director Brecht 
explained that the District is in the third year of a five-year cycle on the last 218 process.  
President Dice noted that some residents were complaining about the rates, and recommended 
reminding them about the 218 process and the fact that they had an opportunity to protest the rate 
adjustments. 
  4. Water Quality Monitoring Plan Progress.  Mr. Poole reported that the 
water quality monitoring was underway.  Staff is looking at grants for new wells and/or 
repurposing old ones.  La Casa Del Zorro is destroying two improperly abandoned wells in the 
triangle bounded by Borrego Springs Road, Yaqui Pass and Deep Well Trail in exchange for a 
quitclaim from the District of its 20-foot by 20-foot parcel, which La Casa intends to use for a 
solar farm.  Director Brecht felt the $14,000 budget for water quality monitoring was insufficient. 
  5. RH agreement for Spare capacity.  Mr. Poole reported that he would meet 
this afternoon with Rams Hill representatives and Trey Driscoll about Rams Hill’s continuing 
request for spare capacity.  Director Brecht noted that Rams Hill had an obligation to purchase 
$400,000 worth of water, and asked how much they wanted and when.  Mr. Poole replied that it 
was up to 30 acre-feet per month.  Under a wheeling arrangement, Rams Hill would drill a new 
well and wants the District to use some of its capacity.  There are a lot of criteria, and the 
District’s spare capacity could be exhausted.  Mr. Poole wanted to make sure Rams Hill 
understands that the law allows the District to retain 30 percent. 
  6. BS Basin Groundwater Monitoring Program (including well 
abandonment).  Staff is working on scheduling the work and expects it to begin in August. 
  7. Status of Independent Cyber Security Evaluation.  Mr. Poole reported that 
the independent cyber security evaluation began last week.  Director Brecht wanted to be able to 
report that this is being done for the next audit, and requested the results of the first test. 
  8. Status of RH flood control facilities.  Mr. Poole reported that the first 
round of inspections is complete, and he was scheduling the next round.  Director Brecht 
requested an independent agency inspection, perhaps by Dudek or JPIA. 



Minutes:  July 23, 2019 4 

  9. Evaluating impacts of possible Negotiated Settlement on current and 
future State Grant funding, including current CIP Applications.  Mr. Poole reported that he was 
working with Leanne Crow to determine whether the District would lose the ability to obtain 
grants if it enters into a stipulated judgment.  It depends on the grant program specifications.  Ms. 
Lawrence pointed out that the practice to date has been to give adjudicated basins low priority in 
grant approval. 
  10. Status of GSP Development Costs Reimbursement.  Mr. Poole reported 
that the County had submitted reimbursement request on behalf of the District for its share of the 
SDAC grant, covering LaSar outreach services, ENSI and new well development.  A check for 
$200,000 is in the mail.  The District has already submitted a request for its next phase of 
reimbursements.  The final cost calculations are being developed and will be included in the 
future pumping fee. 
  11. Return on invested capital for WWTP solar project.  Mr. Poole will report 
in September when Ms. Pitman returns from vacation. 
  12. San Diego County Water Authority evaluation of pipeline routes to 
transport conserved water from Imperial Irrigation District.  Mr. Poole reported on a workshop 
he attended last week regarding the San Diego County Water Authority’s idea to transport water 
from the Coachella Valley to San Diego via pipeline.  One of the three routes being evaluated 
would run through Borrego Springs, and the District might be able to acquire water from it.  The 
evaluation, CEQA compliance and construction would probably take around ten years.  Dialog 
with SDCWA will continue.  Director Brecht asked that Mr. Poole request a letter from SDCWA 
asking for BWD’s help before contributing any funds.  Mr. Poole will develop a BWD position 
on the project, to be communicated once the letter is received.   
 
III. STAFF REPORTS 
 A. Financial Reports: May 2019, June 2019:  Director Brecht requested a year-end 
financial report in September. 
 B. Water and Wastewater Operations Report:  May 2019, June 2019:   The Water 
and Wastewater Operations Report was included in the Board package. 
 C. Water Production/Use Records:  May 2019, June 2019:  The Water 
Production/Use Records were included in the Board package. 
 D. General Manager:  The General Manager’s report was presented as Item II.B. 
 
V. CLOSED SESSION 
 A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to 
Government Code paragraph (3) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9 (Two (2) potential cases):  
 B. GM Performance Review - Conference for Public Employee Performance Evaluation 
– Title: General Manager Employee Performance Review – pursuant to subdivision (d) (4) of 
Government Code Section 54957: 
  The Board adjourned to closed session at 10:50 a.m., and the open session reconvened at 
11:45 a.m.  There was no reportable action. 
 
VI. CLOSING PROCEDURE 
 A. Suggested Items for Next/Future Agenda:  Items for the next Agenda were discussed 
previously. 
 B. The next Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for Tuesday, September 10th 
@ 9:00.  There being no further business, the Board adjourned at 11:45 a.m. 



BORREGO WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

SEPTMBER 24, 2019 
AGENDA ITEM II.A.1 

 
 
 

September 19, 2019 
 
 
TO:   Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Geoffrey Poole, General Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Request for Construction Water by Jim Whelan for Ocotillo Wells Solar – G Poole 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
Review Draft Contract and Approve as amended, if needed. Instruct staff to discuss Contract with Developer 
and allow for non-substantive amendments 
 
ITEM EXPLANATION: 
 
At the last Board Meeting, representatives from the Gildred Company appeared to update the Board on its 
project for a solar farm in Ocotillo Wells. In summary, plans for re-initiating construction are underway and 
Gildred wanted to make sure BWD is still willing to sell them up to 40 acre feet of water for construction 
purposes only. In the past, the proposal included the purchase of 4 water credits, installation of all 
infrastructure needed to deliver the water and payment of the construction water rate.  
 
The attached Contract mirrors the previous arrangement except the previously described Water Credit 
payment of $28,000 has been changed to a $25,000 non-refundable deposit. The Developer must pay all 
costs with the construction of the connection to BWD system. The current plan is to locate the connection 
near the 900 tank which has lower pressures and reduces the potential for operational issues caused by 
turning water on and off at high pressures that are present in other portions of BWDs system. The new 
proposed contract continues with all of the other previous requirements and due to the increased rate for 
construction water, the value of delivering 40 acre feet is now $161,172 + $25,000 deposit.  
 
Legal Counsel has created the attached proposed Agreement for this purpose and is requesting authority to 
negotiate any non-substantive amendments to the document 
 . 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The total value of water credits and deliveries is $161,172 for 40 af. 
 
ATTACHMENT 
1. Draft Contract 
 



 
 

BORREGO WATER DISTRICT 

CONSTRUCTION WATER AGREEMENT  

This ("Agreement") is made as of September 24, 2019 (“Effective Date”), by and between 
the Borrego Water District, a public agency organized under the laws of the State of California 
with its principal place of business at 806 Palm Canyon Drive, Borrego Springs, CA 92004 
(“District”) and The Gildred Company, a California Corporation with its principal place of business 
at 710 B Street, San Diego CA 92101 (“Buyer”).  District and Buyer are referred to collectively as 
the “Parties” or may be referred to individually as a “Party.”  

RECITALS: 

A. The Buyer desires to purchase approximately forty (40) acre-feet of construction 
water (“Water”) for a planned solar project in Ocotillo Wells (the “Project”).   

B. The District desires to sell the Water to the Buyer for the Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals and the mutual covenants 
hereinafter contained and for good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

1. Incorporation of Recitals.  The Parties acknowledge that the above recitals are true 
and correct, and incorporate those recitals by reference into this Agreement.  

2. Term.  This Agreement shall commence upon the Effective Date and terminate on 
September 30, 2020, unless earlier terminated as provided herein.  The Parties may, by mutual, 
written consent, extend the term of this Agreement.       

3. Purchase Price.  The Buyer shall purchase Water from the District at the construction 
water meter rate in effect at the time of delivery.  The current construction water meter rate is 
$9.25 per hcf (100 cubic feet).  Assuming the Buyer utilizes forty (40) acre-feet for the Project, the 
resulting amount charged to the Buyer will be approximately $161,172.00, subject to adjustments 
pursuant to the construction water meter rate.  The Water shall be used for the Project only.   

4. Deposit.  The Buyer shall provide a $25,000 non-refundable deposit prior to 
purchasing Water. The deposit shall be returned to the Buyer at the termination of this Agreement 
provided the Buyer does not owe the District compensation related to unpaid Water bills and/or 
damage/loss.  If the Deposit is used, Buyer must reimburse District. 

5. Delivery Connection Point.  The location of the point of delivery of the Water shall 
be mutually agreed upon by both Parties.  The Buyer’s Water point of delivery shall be installed 
and maintained in such a way that it protects the District’s water system from any cross connection 
or contamination.  The connection shall include a District approved backflow prevention device 
tested and certified in accordance with the District’s regulations (air gap allowed). All water service 



connection costs and related hardware shall be provided by or paid for by the Buyer at its sole cost 
and expense.  Upon termination of the Agreement, the Buyer shall disconnect the Water service 
connection from the District’s point of delivery.     

6. Metering.  The Buyer shall purchase and install, at the point of delivery, a District 
approved and properly calibrated metering device to calculate total Water usage.  This device 
shall be accessible to the District to read the monthly Water usage by the Buyer.   

7. Billing and Payment.  The District will bill the Buyer for the metered quantity of Water 
delivered to the Buyer each month and payments shall be made by the Buyer within thirty (30) 
days of receipt of an invoice.    

8. Compliance with Laws/Permits.  The Buyer shall in all activities undertaken pursuant 
to this Agreement, including use of the Water, comply with all federal, state and local laws, 
statutes, orders, ordinances, rules, regulations, plans, policies and decrees.  

9. Indemnification.  To the maximum extent allowed by law, the Buyer hereby agrees 
to indemnify, defend (with counsel of District’s choosing), assume all liability for and hold District, 
its officials, officers, employees, volunteers, and agents free and harmless from any and all claims, 
demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, liability, loss, damage or injury of any kind, in law or 
equity, to property or persons, including wrongful death, in any manner arising out of, pertaining 
to, or incident to any acts, errors or omissions, or willful misconduct of the Buyer, its officials, 
officers, employees, subcontractors, consultants or agents in connection with the performance of 
this Agreement, including without limitation the payment expert witness fees, attorney’s fees, and 
other related costs and expenses except for such loss or damage which is caused by the sole 
negligence or willful misconduct of the District.  The Buyer's obligation to indemnify shall not be 
restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by the Buyer or District, and their officials, 
officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.  This Section shall survive the expiration or termination 
of this Agreement.   

10. Insurance.  The Buyer shall maintain adequate insurance coverage, including 
naming the District as an additional insured, for the duration of this Agreement.   

11. Termination.  Either Party may terminate the whole or any part of this Agreement at 
any time and without cause by giving written notice to other Party of such termination, and specifying 
the effective date thereof, at least thirty (30) days before the effective date of such termination.    

12. Continuing Obligations, Liability.  No termination of this Agreement shall release the 
Parties from any liability or obligation hereunder resulting from any acts, omissions or events 
happening prior the termination of this Agreement.  

13. Authority to Enter into Agreement.  The District and Buyer warrant that they have all 
requisite power and authority to execute and perform this Agreement.  Each person executing this 
Agreement on behalf of their party warrants that he or she has the legal power, right, and authority 
to make this Agreement and bind his or her respective party. 

14. Miscellaneous.  The Parties agree and intend that the District and Buyer are 
independent contracting entities and do not intend by this Agreement to create any partnership, 
joint venture, or similar business arrangement, relationship or association between them.  Nothing 



in the Agreement shall be deemed to be a requirement that the District continue providing water 
to Buyer after the termination of this Agreement.  This Agreement shall be interpreted in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California.  If any action is brought to interpret or enforce 
any term of this Agreement, the action shall be brought in a state or federal court situated in San 
Diego County, State of California.  If either Party commences an action against the other Party, 
either legal, administrative or otherwise, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement, the 
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover all reasonable fees and costs incurred, including 
reasonable attorneys’ fees, as determined by the court.  The Buyer shall not assign, sublet, or 
transfer this Agreement or any rights under or interest in this Agreement without the written 
consent of the District.  The Buyer shall not transfer, convey or sell any Water provided under this 
Agreement to a third party. This Agreement may not be modified or altered except in writing signed 
by both Parties.  There are no intended third party beneficiaries of any right or obligation of the 
Parties.  This is an integrated Agreement representing the entire understanding of the Parties as 
to those matters contained herein, and supersedes and cancels any prior oral or written 
understanding or representations with respect to matters covered hereunder.  Since the Parties 
or their agents have participated fully in the preparation of this Agreement, the language of this 
Agreement shall be construed simply, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against 
any Party.  The captions of the various paragraphs are for convenience and ease of reference 
only, and do not define, limit, augment, or describe the scope, content or intent of this Agreement.  
The unenforceability, invalidity or illegality of any provision(s) of this Agreement shall not render 
the other provisions unenforceable, invalid or illegal.  Notice may be given or delivered by 
depositing the same in any United States Post Office, certified mail, return receipt requested, 
postage prepaid, addressed to the Parties to the addresses set forth in this Agreement.  

  



SIGNATURE PAGE FOR AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE BORREGO WATER DISTRICT 

AND THE GILDRED COMPANY 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have entered into this Agreement as of the 24th day of September, 2019. 

  

BORREGO SPRINGS    THE GILDRED COMPANY 

 

By:        By:____________________________  

Kathy Dice    ________________________________ (Print Name) 

President, Board of Directors  ________________________________ (Title) 

ATTEST: 

 

By: __________________________ 

 Dave Duncan 

Secretary, Borrego Water District 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



BORREGO WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

SEPTMBER 24, 2019 
AGENDA ITEM II.A.2 

 
September 19, 2019 
 
 
TO:   Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Geoffrey Poole, General Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Borrego Springs Options to SDGE: UPDATE– G Poole  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
Discuss Options and receive verbal update from Brian Brady (EX IID GM) and direct staff as deemed 
appropriate 
 
ITEM EXPLANATION: 
 
At the last meeting, a request was made for BWD to monitor the activities of The County of SD and City of 
SD as it pertains to community based energy system (Community Choice Aggregation) as an alternative to 
SDGE. In summary, the County, City and others are considering taking steps to become a utility that would 
allow them to purchase electricity on the open market and transport the power via the existing grid (and pay 
the fees). The County of San Diego, City of San Diego and various other cities are considering this 
alternative and the question is would this activity benefit Borrego Springs. 
 
It’s a very complex issue and the good news is BWD has access to an unbiased independent expert in this 
area. Management Consultant Brain Brady was the former Imperial Irrigation District General Manager and 
has extensive experience in this area. There are few people more qualified in this area than Brian. He is 
already planning to attend the meeting so staff has asked him to be available for some Q and A on this topic. 
In summary, Brain’s feeling can be summarized in his email to me on this topic earlier this week, see below: 
 
Hey Geoff- 
 
There are multiple barriers to BWD successfully operating a CCA: 

 BWD may need to have LAFCO approve additional latent powers (at least a year-long 
process) 

 Developing a plan acceptable to the CPUC will likely cost $50,000 to $150,000 
(questionable recovery from BWD water ratepayers). 

 BWD has no expertise in power marketing. Must be contracted out. 
 BWD has no expertise in electric rate-setting. 
 The CCA would still be held hostage to SDG&E wires charges and emergency back-up 

costs. 



 Power profile and electric demand of the Borrego Valley may not attractive to alternative 
power providers, resulting in contracts which do not produce anticipated savings. 

 Uncertainty whether enough electric customers will subscribe to the CCA. 

Bottom line, I see no upside to BWD being the standard-bearer for a CCA. More responsibility, 
for which BWD has no expertise. And, significant costs which must be recovered from an 
uncertain subscriber base. By no means should the District be fronting funds for the 
development of a CCA. 
 
Brian 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
TBD 
 
ATTACHMENT 
1. None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
BORREGO WATER DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
SEPTMBER 24, 2019 

AGENDA ITEM II.B.1 AND II 
 
 
 
 

September 19, 2019 
 
 
TO:   Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Geoffrey Poole, General Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  1. Groundwater Sustainability Plan UPDATE – G Poole 

2. Stipulated Judgement Negotiations UPDATE – G Poole 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
Receive Report and direct staff as deemed appropriate 
 
ITEM EXPLANATION: 
 
Groundwater Sustainability Plan UPDATE: The Draft Final GSP has been released by The County of SD. 
The document is available on the BWD and County websites. The last GSP Advisory Committee meeting 
is being held on October 4th at 10 am at the Lirbary in which a consensus vote on the document is planned. 
 
Stipulated Judgement Negotiations UPDATE: Negotiations have continued and the Pumper Attorneys are 
putting together the detailed Stipulation documents that are planned for public review in October. An overall 
outline of the planned schedule (subject to change) follows; 
 
SEP/OCT: Stipulation Documents Drafted by Pumpers' Legal Counsels 

OCT/NOV: Stipulation Released to Public for Review and Q/A 

NOV/DEC: Stipulation Submitted to Judge 
BEFORE JAN 31, 2020: Judge Instruct Pumpers to Submit Stipulation to DWR to meet deadlines 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
TBD 
 
ATTACHMENT 
1. None 
 
 
 
 
 



BORREGO WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

SEPTMBER 24, 2019 
AGENDA ITEM II.C 

 
 

September 19, 2019 
 
 
TO:   Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Geoffrey Poole, General Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Status Update and Verbal Report – G Poole 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
Receive Report and direct staff as deemed appropriate 
 
ITEM EXPLANATION: 
 

1. Critical Overdraft Plan Development (Brecht Memo Attached) 
 
 
Director Brecht has prepared the attached for Board review/discussion 
 

2. Water Quality Monitoring Plan (Attached) 
 
Staff has developed a Report the outlines all of the current and planned Water Quality sampling in the Basin 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SGMA Legislation Provides Two Options to 
Reach Sustainable Use of the Subbasin by 2040 

 1



OPTION ONE

GSA led GSP development process

County Supervisors and BWD Board approves final GSP by January 31, 2020 after public hearing

DWR accepts GSP as compliant (DWR has 2 years to do this once the final GSP has been 
approved)

CEQA is required for GSA to implement discretionary GSP projects like fallowing farmland (this 
is likely a multi-year process once the final GSP has been approved by BWD and County and is 
accepted by DWR)

SGMA requires 5-year reports to SWRCB on progress meeting SGMA objectives (clock begins 
upon start of GSP implementation)

SWRCB enforces GSP if GSA fails to perform (SWRCB takes control of basin if GSA fails 
completely)

 2



OPTION TWO

Pumpers of the subbasin reach a contractual agreement (stipulation agreement). The 
stipulation includes the Physical Solution to the critical overdraft. BWD holds public 
hearing on stipulation document before Board signs for BWD

This signed stipulation is submitted to DWR who blesses it for the court to approve 
if the agreement achieves SGMA objectives for a critically overdrafted basin (DWR 
has public comment period on stipulation before they inform the court)

All landowners in the subbasin are sued by BWD (this is called a comprehensive 
adjudication)

The court issues a judgement approving the stipulation.  Court is very unlikely to 
approve stipulation if DWR deems the agreement is not compliant with SGMA 
objectives

 3



OPTION TWO

Instead of the GSA managing the GSP implementation, a court-
appointed Watermaster manages the Physical Solution

Instead of the SWRCB enforcing progress, the court enforces 
progress if the Watermaster fails to perform. 5-year progress 
reports go to the court

The Watermaster (as an arm of the court) is not subject to 
CEQA when implementing the Physical Solution

 4



ITEM II C.2 
Borrego Basin 

Water Quality Programs 2019-2020 

 

1. MANDATORY DRINKING WATER QUALITY SAMPLING OF BWD WELLS 
 

Agency = Borrego Water District   Annual Cost = $13,000 Lab + $15,000 
Labor = $28,000 

Purpose = Meet Public Drinking Water Requirements set by State and Federal regulatory 
agencies.  

Justification = Federal and State Requirements prescribe the constituents and frequency 
of water quality sampling required to provide potable water in Borrego Springs. BWD ratepayers 
will continue to fund this effort in the short and long term.  

Recommendation = BWD continue funding 

 

2. INCREASED FREQUENCY FOR BWD WELL SAMPLING 

Agency = Borrego Water District   Annual Cost = $4,000 Lab + $2,000 Labor 
= $6,000 

Purpose = Increase the WQ data points to enhance the understanding of water quality 
and trends that could impact BWD wells. 

Justification = The BWD Board has increased the frequency of water quality sampling to 
semiannually in an effort to better understand trends and predict impacts in the future on BWD 
wells.  

Recommendation = BWD continue funding and use BWD staff to conduct the sampling 
and transportation to the Lab. Estimates for Consultant to perform sampling = $18,300 for 2019. 

 

3. EXPANDED ANALYSIS ON BWD WELLS   
Agency = BWD Annual Cost: Equip: $1,000 (one time) + Labor $3,000 = $4,000 

These water quality testing recommendations summarized here are intended to be done in 
conjunction with ongoing sampling and testing of BWD supply wells.  Currently the water 
produced from the Borrego Water District’s wells does not require advanced treatment.  
Naturally-occurring minerals such as arsenic and sulfate are of concern for water supply 
management.  Arsenic has been observed to exceed the drinking water MCL and is of high 



concern due to the potential for BWD wells to either not be available for use, or to require water 
treatment that is generally regarded as cost prohibitive to the Borrego Springs community1. 

 

Review of historical water quality data (in Appendix B of ENSI’s 4/16/2019 Report) supports that 
the collection of additional groundwater data has the potential to provide early indication of 
diminished water quality specific to arsenic, sulfate, and total dissolved solids (TDS).   The 
following relationships have been observed to date: 

 Elevated concentrations of Arsenic (at or near the MCL) have historically been preceded 
by increases in pH.  Ths was observed in ID1-10, ID1-16, Wilcox, and ID1-8 where a rise 
in pH (often greater than 8.2) typically preceded the rise in Arsenic.  (See, for example, 
Figures 21, 23, 25, and 28 of Appendix B cited above).  pH can easily be measured at the 
wellhead. 
 

 Sulfate and TDS concentrations are generally increasing as a result of chronic overdraft.  
Sulfate is increasing in ID4-18 and ID1-10 (See, for example, Figures 20 and 21 of 
Appendix B cited above).  Both are correlated to the electrical conductivity of the water, a 
parameter that can also be readily measured at the wellhead. 
 

 Multi-parameter analysis of the major inorganic anions and cations in groundwater has 
proven very useful toward the overall assessment of groundwater chemistry and water 
quality trends over time and with location within the Borrego Valley.  Included in the 
‘general minerals’ analysis are eight cations and anions: Ca, Na, Mg, K, SO4, Cl, CO3, 
and HCO3.  Historically these analyses were conducted every 1 to 3 years.  ENSI 
4/16/2019 includes an extensive statistical and graphical analysis of the inorganic water 
chemistry used to examine how water quality has changed over time at BWD water 
supply wells. 
 

 The general minerals analysis involves electrically-charged anions and cations.   Quality 
 control includes the assessment of the electrical charge balance.  ENSI’s data review 
noted that many of the analyses were not ‘balanced’ even after accounting for nitrate and 
fluoride (also charged ions).  While the mass balances remained within tolerance, the results 
suggest that additional anions may occur in groundwater that have not been tested.  Phosphate 
is one type of anion that may occur but have not been included in the analytical program. 

 Currently, the County funded GSP sampling (funding ends in March 2020) includes a 
subset of these inorganic analytes.  The intent of the recommended sampling is to expand the 

                                                           
1 Borrego Springs is classified as a severely disadvantaged community (SDAC).  The median income of $46,866 is 
approximately 65% of San Diego County’s median income of $71,886.  This puts the majority of the households below the 
limits for designation as low income or lower under the California Department of Housing and Community Development.  
(LDC (2019, p8; [Appendix A]) provides a clear picture of the distribution of income within the SDA Community.  “In the 
Borrego Municipal User Survey results, 49% of those who responded to 
questions about income indicated they have an annual income of $36,000 or less (Appendix G).  This is in line with 2016 
Census estimates indicating that 51% of households had an income of $35,000 or less.” 



list of analytes for the samples being collected as part of the routine sampling.  A separate 
sampling event is not necessary or recommended. 

Two types of data collection and analysis are recommended: 

 Field-based data collection done at the wellhead using conventional water testing 
equipment.  These types of measurements use hand-held equipment and are reliable and 
cost-effective.  Measurements are recommended to be done monthly and should include 
at a minimum pH, electrical conductivity, and temperature.  Dissolved oxygen and 
oxidation-reduction (redox, or Eh) measurements can also be done at the same time, 
depending on the probes being used.  These parameters have not been routinely 
measured and are recommended to be added to the sampling program as they are 
readily measured and may prove to be of use. 

 

 The measurements should be conducted using field test probes placed in “flow cells”.  
These allow the water chemistry parameters should be collected using before it is exposed to 
the atmosphere2.   “Quick-connects” or similar plumbing can be used to expedite the work. 

 Laboratory-based analyses to be added to the GSP’s inorganic chemistry testing program 
include general minerals to be analyzed every 2 years.  Phosphate is recommended to be 
included at the same time.  Electrical charge balance calculations should be done to 
assess the data quality and to examine the role of phosphate, nitrate, and other anions 
and cations that occur in groundwater. 

 

No additional organic analytes are being recommended in this Summary.   This does not 
preclude the need for additional analysis of organic chemicals such as pesticides and 
herbicides.   Future work by BWD and others will likely include expanded testing analysis of 
organic contaminants as part of ongoing evaluation of the impact of historical land uses on water 
quality across the Borrego Valley. 

Groundwater quality in the Borrego Valley has been impacted by overdraft and historical land 
uses.   The recommended field and lab data collection will support continued assessment of 
changes in water quality and is intended to be done in conjunction with ongoing BWD water 
quality testing and supply well management work. 

The overall intent of the field-based (wellhead) sampling is to provide more frequently-collected 
data that may provide an ‘early warning’ of potential water quality problems.  For example, pH 
has been observed to increase years ahead of increases in Arsenic concentrations and may be 
able to forewarn of potential MCL exceedances such as those that have occurred at ID1-10 in 
2014.   Similarly, long-term changes in sulfate and TDS will likely be evident based on electrical 
conductivity measurements.  The wellhead testing is intended to be cost-effective and readily 
done by BWD technicians.   Ongoing comparison of the data and the routine groundwater 

                                                           

 

 



sampling data will be required.   Examples of the range of potential data analyses are included in 
ENSI’s 4/16/2019 report.    

BWD faces financial and economic risks associated with unexpected changes in the quality of 
water being produced from their water supply wells.  The lab-based testing and subsequent 
multi-parameter analysis will enhance the long-term assessment of groundwater conditions in 
the Borrego Valley.   Additional analyses, such as depth-specific water quality testing described 
in the GSP and ENSI 4/16/2019, will provide further insights regarding current and future water 
quality conditions and support BWD’s water supply management. 

Recommendation = BWD initiate WQ sampling as described above in CY 2020.  

 

4. CASGEM WATER LEVEL MONITORING: 

Agency = BWD      Annual Cost = $2,500 Labor 

On November 4, 2009 the state legislature amended the Water Code with SB 6, which 
mandates a statewide, locally-managed groundwater elevation monitoring program to track 
seasonal and long-term trends in groundwater elevations in California’s groundwater basins. To 
achieve that goal the amendment requires collaboration between local Monitoring Entities and 
the Department of Water Resources (DWR) to collect groundwater elevation data. In accordance 
with the amendment, DWR developed the California Statewide Groundwater Elevation 
Monitoring (CASGEM) program.  
BWD participates in the CASGEM program in cooperation with the County of SD and DWR 
The primary objective of the CASGEM monitoring program is to define the seasonal and long-
term trends in groundwater elevations in California’s groundwater basins. The scale for this 
evaluation should be the static, regional groundwater table or potentiometric surface. A 
secondary objective is to provide sufficient data to draw representative contour maps of the 
elevations. These maps could be used to estimate changes in groundwater storage and to 
evaluate potential areas of overdraft and subsidence.  
Although it is not an objective of the CASGEM program, it would be valuable to include 
monitoring wells near localized features that impact more dynamic groundwater elevations. 
These features would include wells near aquifer storage and recovery projects, near high 
volume pumping wells, and near rivers. Currently Jerry Rolwing is assisting with semi annual 
CASGEM reading. 

 

Recommendation = BWD continue funding CASGEM and consider transition to 
WaterMaster or GSA responsibility  

  
5. GSA/GSP RELATED MONITORING/SAMPLING IN BORREGO SPRINGS SUB BASIN – 

NON BWD WELLS: 

Agency = GSA/WaterMaster     Annual Cost = $110,000 

  



Semi-Annual Groundwater Level Monitoring: Monitoring of groundwater levels conducted 
semi-annually throughout the well network within the Subbasin. This may consist of multiple 
days of field monitoring annually in which trained professionals will manually measure depth to 
groundwater, or, collect data from transducer data loggers. Management of data, as well as 
annual preparation of groundwater level monitoring summary memorandum. 
 
Semi-Annual Water Quality Monitoring Collection, testing, and analysis of groundwater 
samples from designated monitoring wells on a semi-annual basis. A trained professional will 
visit designated wells, perform field testing of select water quality parameters, collect samples, 
and send samples to laboratory for water quality testing. Test results will be tabulated and 
reported per the GSP guidelines. Management of data, as well as annual preparation of water 
quality monitoring summary.  
 
Semi-Annual Stream Monitoring Inspection and monitoring of streams within basin on a semi-
annual basis. Tasks may include measuring flow rates, visual inspection of streams, noting 
changes in geomorphology, and preparation of stream monitoring summary.  
  
  
  
  
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

       WQ Sampling      $110,049 

 

Purpose = Continue WQ monitoring that began as part of the GSP development process. 

Justification = It is critical that data is continued to be collected in the basin during the 
interim period between conclusion of Stipulation negotiations and final regulatory and court 
approval (up to 2 years). Other components of the Stipulation, most importantly rampdown rate,  
will commence upon signing the documents by pumpers. WQ monitoring should be another item 
in this category.  Highlighted portions of GSP Table 5-1 identify the expense needed during the 

Table 5-1 

Operations and Monitoring Costs 

Expense Item 

Estimated 
Annual Costs 

(FY 2020) 

Task 1: 
Semi-Annual Groundwater Level 

Monitoring 
$29,616 

Task 2: Semi-Annual Water Quality Monitoring $69,131 
Task 3: Semi-Annual Stream Monitoring $11,302 
Task 4: Pump Metering $10,927 
Task 5: Land Subsidence Review $9,168 
Task 6: Operation and Maintenance $20,739 
Task 7: Data Management System $19,508 
Task 8: Annual Groundwater Model Update $79,375 
Task 9: Annual Comprehensive DWR Reporting $16,444 
Task 10: Project Management and Coordination $37,051 

Total $303,261 



interim period.  Costs are estimated to be approximately $110,000 per year.  A line item in the 
GSA or WaterMaster budget must include continued WQ monitoring during the interim and long 
term implementation of the Basin.  

Recommendation = GSA/WaterMastser/Principals agree to continue interim testing and 
develop WQ monitoring plan within 24 months of signing Stipulation (as currently recommended 
in Term Sheet). Fully fund WQ monitoring plan recommendations into future budgets thru 2040 
and beyond. 

 

6. APPLY FOR CURRENT STATE GRANT TO EXPAND WQ MONITORING NETWORK : 

Agency = BWD  One-Time Consulting Fee for Grant App Assistance= TBD 

Annual Cost = TBD 

Purpose = Pursue any outside funding sources including current State Grant opportunity 
to expand WQ monitoring network 

Justification = The State is currently implementing a Grant program for new WQ 
monitoring wells and BWD is in the process of applying for funding. The funds would be used for 
one new monitoring well and repurposing a number of old and/or improperly abandoned wells 

Recommendation = Continue with Application process and take steps to obtain the 
Grants. 

 

CONCLUSION: 

Staff recommend continuation of the GW monitoring outlined above  

 
 



IV.A 
FINANACIALS 

REPORT 
May 2019 

June 2019 

July 2019 

August 2019 

 
 
 



































































































IV.B 
WATER & WASTE 

WATER OPERATIONS 
REPORT 

May 2019 

June 2019 

July 2019 

August 2019 

 

 

 

 
 



 

P.O. BOX 1870 / 806 PALM CANYON DRIVE, BORREGO SPRINGS, CA  92004 (760) 767-5806 FAX (760) 767-5994 www.borregowd.org 

 
May 2019 
 
 

WATER OPERATIONS REPORT 
 

WELL  TYPE  FLOW RATE STATUS  COMMENT 
 
ID1-8  Production 350  In Use 
ID1-10  Production 300  In Use 
ID1-12  Production 900  In Use   
ID1-16  Production 750  In Use   
Wilcox  Production   80  In Use  Diesel backup well for ID-4   
ID4-4  Production 400  In Use 
ID4-11  Production 900  In Use  Diesel engine drive exercised monthly 
ID4-18  Production 150  In Use 
ID5-5  Production 850  In Use   
 
System Problems:  All production wells are in service. All reservoirs are in operating condition.  

WASTEWATER OPERATIONS REPORT 
 
Rams Hill Wastewater Treatment Facility serving ID-1, ID-2 and ID-5 Total Cap. 0.25 MGD (million 
gallons per day): 
Average flow:  60,590 (gallons per day) 
Peak flow:  97,400 gpd Sunday, May 26, 2019 
 
 
 



 

P.O. BOX 1870 / 806 PALM CANYON DRIVE, BORREGO SPRINGS, CA  92004 (760) 767-5806 FAX (760) 767-5994 www.borregowd.org 

 
June 2019 
 
 

WATER OPERATIONS REPORT 
 

WELL    TYPE    FLOW RATE  STATUS    COMMENT 
 
ID1‐8    Production  350    In Use 
ID1‐10    Production  300    In Use 
ID1‐12    Production  900    In Use     
ID1‐16    Production  750    In Use     
Wilcox    Production    80    In Use    Diesel backup well for ID‐4     
ID4‐4    Production  400    In Use 
ID4‐11    Production  900    In Use    Diesel engine drive exercised monthly 
ID4‐18    Production  150    In Use 
ID5‐5    Production  850    In Use     
 
System Problems:  All production wells are in service. All reservoirs are in operating condition.  

WASTEWATER OPERATIONS REPORT 
 
Rams Hill Wastewater Treatment Facility serving ID‐1, ID‐2 and ID‐5 Total Cap. 0.25 MGD (million 
gallons per day): 
Average flow:    50,037 (gallons per day) 
Peak flow:    65,500 gpd Thursday, June 6, 2019 
 
 
 



 

P.O. BOX 1870 / 806 PALM CANYON DRIVE, BORREGO SPRINGS, CA  92004 (760) 767-5806 FAX (760) 767-5994 www.borregowd.org 

 
July 2019 
 
 

WATER OPERATIONS REPORT 
 

WELL    TYPE    FLOW RATE  STATUS    COMMENT 
 
ID1‐8    Production  350    In Use 
ID1‐10    Production  300    In Use 
ID1‐12    Production  900    In Use     
ID1‐16    Production  750    In Use     
Wilcox    Production    80    In Use    Diesel backup well for ID‐4     
ID4‐4    Production  400    In Use 
ID4‐11    Production  900    In Use    Diesel engine drive exercised monthly 
ID4‐18    Production  150    In Use 
ID5‐5    Production  850    In Use     
 
System Problems:  All production wells are in service. All reservoirs are in operating condition.  

WASTEWATER OPERATIONS REPORT 
 
Rams Hill Wastewater Treatment Facility serving ID‐1, ID‐2 and ID‐5 Total Cap. 0.25 MGD (million 
gallons per day): 
Average flow:    39,890 (gallons per day) 
Peak flow:    47,600 gpd Friday, July 5, 2019 
 
 
 



 

P.O. BOX 1870 / 806 PALM CANYON DRIVE, BORREGO SPRINGS, CA  92004 (760) 767-5806 FAX (760) 767-5994 www.borregowd.org 

 
August 2019 
 
 

WATER OPERATIONS REPORT 
 

WELL    TYPE    FLOW RATE  STATUS    COMMENT 
 
ID1‐8    Production  350    In Use 
ID1‐10    Production  300    In Use 
ID1‐12    Production  900    In Use     
ID1‐16    Production  750    In Use     
Wilcox    Production    80    In Use    Diesel backup well for ID‐4     
ID4‐4    Production  400    In Use 
ID4‐11    Production  900    In Use    Diesel engine drive exercised monthly 
ID4‐18    Production  150    In Use 
ID5‐5    Production  850    In Use     
 
System Problems:  All production wells are in service. All reservoirs are in operating condition.  

WASTEWATER OPERATIONS REPORT 
 
Rams Hill Wastewater Treatment Facility serving ID‐1, ID‐2 and ID‐5 Total Cap. 0.25 MGD (million 
gallons per day): 
Average flow:    42,071 (gallons per day) 
Peak flow:    117,900 gpd Thursday, August 1, 2019 
 
 
 



IV.C 
WATER PRODUCTION/ 

USE RECORDS 
May 2019 

June 2019 

July 2019 

August 2019 

 
 
 



8

                                               WATER PRODUCTION SUMMARY
MAY 2019

WATER WATER WATER ID4 ID4 ID4 TOTAL TOTAL
DATE USE PROD %NRW USE PROD %NRW USE PROD

May-17 28.18 29.45 4.30 98.06 113.48 13.58 126.25 142.93
Jun-17 29.25 33.42 12.48 96.28 106.02 9.19 125.52 139.44
Jul-17 32.84 34.17 3.90 107.37 122.38 12.26 140.21 156.55

Aug-17 35.64 40.65 12.32 127.56 141.43 9.81 163.19 182.07
Sep-17 40.98 43.11 4.93 102.46 114.72 10.69 143.44 157.83
Oct-17 29.35 31.05 5.48 108.42 119.22 9.06 137.77 150.28
Nov-17 26.03 27.67 5.92 107.09 120.15 10.87 133.12 147.82
Dec-17 23.23 26.28 11.60 80.91 89.46 9.55 104.14 115.73
Jan-18 19.40 19.95 2.74 86.60 95.01 8.85 106.01 114.96
Feb-18 19.77 21.14 6.49 78.55 87.58 10.31 98.32 108.72
Mar-18 19.90 20.26 1.77 73.56 80.32 8.42 93.46 100.58
Apr-18 22.01 22.72 3.11 88.49 99.08 10.69 110.50 121.80
May-18 25.10 25.46 1.40 98.95 108.29 8.62 124.05 133.75
Jun-18 29.06 29.87 2.72 100.42 108.40 7.36 129.48 138.28
Jul-18 30.87 31.47 1.89 96.80 111.42 13.12 127.67 142.89

Aug-18 36.34 38.25 4.99 124.77 142.84 12.65 161.11 181.09
Sep-18 34.31 37.40 8.26 105.93 117.15 9.58 140.24 154.55
Oct-18 29.96 30.42 1.49 118.14 129.33 8.65 148.10 159.74
Nov-18 24.75 25.62 3.41 100.65 109.27 7.89 125.39 134.89
Dec-18 16.14 22.36 27.80 71.19 80.13 11.16 87.33 102.49
Jan-19 14.91 16.84 11.47 58.48 64.29 9.04 73.39 81.13
Feb-19 14.99 16.06 6.70 58.89 66.49 11.42 73.88 82.55
Mar-19 15.35 15.75 2.51 55.83 62.48 10.65 71.18 78.23
Apr-19 20.31 20.97 3.18 90.96 98.41 7.57 111.26 119.38
May-19 25.04 25.13 0.37 83.92 92.63 9.41 108.95 117.76

                12 Mo. TOTAL 292.03 310.14 6.23 1065.96 1182.84 9.88 1357.99 1492.99

Totals reflect Water (ID1 & ID3) and ID4 (ID4 & ID5) .  Interties to SA3 are no longer needed to be
separated. ID4 and SA5 are combined because all water production is pumped from ID4.
All figures are in Acre Feet of water pumped.
NOTE: ID1 Fire flow line break at La Casa not metered.

                                    NON-REVENUE WATER SUMMARY (%)

DATE WATER ID-4 ID-5 DISTRICT-WIDE AVERAGE
May-19 0.37 9.41 N/A 4.89

            12 Mo. Average 6.23 9.88 N/A 8.06







8

                                               WATER PRODUCTION SUMMARY
AUGUST 2019

WATER WATER WATER ID4 ID4 ID4 TOTAL TOTAL

DATE USE PROD %NRW USE PROD %NRW USE PROD

Aug‐17 35.64 40.65 12.32 127.56 141.43 9.81 163.19 182.07
Sep‐17 40.98 43.11 4.93 102.46 114.72 10.69 143.44 157.83
Oct‐17 29.35 31.05 5.48 108.42 119.22 9.06 137.77 150.28
Nov‐17 26.03 27.67 5.92 107.09 120.15 10.87 133.12 147.82
Dec‐17 23.23 26.28 11.60 80.91 89.46 9.55 104.14 115.73
Jan‐18 19.40 19.95 2.74 86.60 95.01 8.85 106.01 114.96
Feb‐18 19.77 21.14 6.49 78.55 87.58 10.31 98.32 108.72
Mar‐18 19.90 20.26 1.77 73.56 80.32 8.42 93.46 100.58
Apr‐18 22.01 22.72 3.11 88.49 99.08 10.69 110.50 121.80
May‐18 25.10 25.46 1.40 98.95 108.29 8.62 124.05 133.75
Jun 18 29 06 29 87 2 72 100 42 108 40 7 36 129 48 138 28Jun‐18 29.06 29.87 2.72 100.42 108.40 7.36 129.48 138.28
Jul‐18 30.87 31.47 1.89 96.80 111.42 13.12 127.67 142.89
Aug‐18 36.34 38.25 4.99 124.77 142.84 12.65 161.11 181.09
Sep‐18 34.31 37.40 8.26 105.93 117.15 9.58 140.24 154.55
Oct‐18 29.96 30.42 1.49 118.14 129.33 8.65 148.10 159.74
Nov‐18 24.75 25.62 3.41 100.65 109.27 7.89 125.39 134.89
Dec‐18 16.14 22.36 27.80 71.19 80.13 11.16 87.33 102.49
Jan‐19 14.91 16.84 11.47 58.48 64.29 9.04 73.39 81.13
Feb‐19 14.99 16.06 6.70 58.89 66.49 11.42 73.88 82.55
Mar‐19 15.35 15.75 2.51 55.83 62.48 10.65 71.18 78.23
Apr‐19 20.31 20.97 3.18 90.96 98.41 7.57 111.26 119.38
May‐19 23.79 25.13 5.33 83.92 92.63 9.41 107.70 117.76
Jun‐19 36.31 37.19 2.36 93.43 96.69 3.37 129.74 133.88
Jul‐19 44.09 45.49 3.08 115.58 123.04 6.07 159.67 168.53
Aug‐19 37.02 38.56 3.99 111.63 114.37 2.39 148.65 152.92

                12 Mo. TOTAL 311.92 331.79 6.63 1064.61 1154.27 8.10 1376.53 1486.06

Totals reflect Water (ID1 & ID3) and ID4 (ID4 & ID5) .  Interties to SA3 are no longer needed to be

separated. ID4 and SA5 are combined because all water production is pumped from ID4.

All figures are in Acre Feet of water pumped.
NOTE: ID1 Fire flow line break at La Casa not metered.

                                    NON‐REVENUE WATER SUMMARY (%)

DATE WATER ID‐4 ID‐5 DISTRICT‐WIDE AVERAGE
Aug‐19 3.99 2.39 N/A 3.19

            12 Mo. Average 6.63 8.10 N/A 7.37



 
IV.D 

GENERAL MANAGER 
REPORT 




